
Page 1 of 3 

  

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, APRIL 11, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0124. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0125.  Roll Call 

16C‐0126.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0127.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0128.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0129.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
 

LIQOUR COMMISSION 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
16C‐0130. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Liquor License Applications for the Period 
May 1, 2016‐April 30, 2017 

4‐7  

 
16C‐0131. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Corporation Manager Liquor License 
Application by Timothy M. Wickler for Galena Elks Home Association, 123 N. 
Main Street 

8‐10 

 
16C‐0132. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Corporation Manager Liquor License 
Application by Gregory Grant Schulze for Happy Joe’s, 9919 U.S. Route 20 
West 

11‐13 

 
 

Page 1 of 58



Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐07 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0133. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of March 28, 
2016 and the Special Meeting of April 4, 2016 

14‐21  

 
16C‐0134. 

 
Approval of Tour Operators and Tour Guide Licenses for the Period May 1, 
2016‐April 30, 2017 

22 

 
16C‐0135. 

  
Acceptance of February 2016 Financial Report 

 ‐‐ 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0136. 
  
Discussion and Possible Action on Request by the Galena Art and Recreation 
Center for the Fourth of July Celebration at Recreation Park 

 
‐‐ 

 
16C‐0137. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Initiating Projects as Part of the Grant Park 
Maintenance and Improvement Plan with the Galena Foundation 

 
23‐25 

 
16C‐0138. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of the Janitorial Contract for City 
Hall and City Park Restrooms  

 
26‐32 

 
16C‐0139. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of the Janitorial Contract for 
Turner Hall 

 
33‐35 

 
16C‐0140. 
 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of the Janitorial Contract for the 
Public Works Building 

 
36‐38 

 
16C‐0141. 

 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Janitorial Contract for the Market 
House Public Restrooms 

 
39‐47 

 
16C‐0142. 

 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract with Azavar Audit Solutions for 
a Revenue Recovery Audit 

 
48‐51 

Page 2 of 58



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. April 13  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Deer Committee   Wed. April 20   6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. April 25  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. May 5  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Turner Hall Committee  Thurs. May 5  8:30 A.M.  Turner Hall, 115 S. Bench Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

 
16C‐0143. 

 
Warrants  

52‐58 

 
16C‐0144. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
16C‐0145. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
16C‐0146. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
16C‐0147. 

 
Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (1) – Employee hiring, firing, compensation, discipline 
and performance 

 Section 2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters and deliberations 
concerning salary schedules 

 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

 
16C‐0148. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 3 of 58



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS  
 

101 Green Street          P.O. Box 310          Galena, Illinois 61036 
Telephone: 815‐777‐1050          Facsimile: 815‐777‐3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor & Council 

From:   Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

CC: Mark Moran, City Administrator 

Date: April 7, 2016 

Re: Liquor License Renewals 

Attached please find a list of Liquor License Renewals for Fiscal Year 2016-2017.  The applicants 
listed have submitted complete applications and have made payment in full.  I have not received a 
renewal application from Keg & Cask Liquor.  Provided the application and needed information are 
received, this applicant will be presented at the next regular meeting.   
 
If you have any questions or would like to see the applications, please feel free to contact me.   

Page 4 of 58



City of Galena Table Lists - Liquor License Agenda List 2016 Page:     1

Apr 07, 2016  09:32AM

Report Criteria:

Business.Account Number =  
120,130,140,150,160,1160,1362,220,230,240,1050,1363,1368,1384,250,260,280,290,300,310,320,330,340,360,370,380,390,400,410,420,430,460,530,540,580,64
0,650,1365,1381,490,1020,531,500,510,520,381,1070,1090,1364,1370,1382,1360,350
Business.License Status = "Active"

License Type.License Type = "CLASS A LIQUOR","CLASS B LIQUOR","CLASS C LIQUOR","CLASS D LIQUOR","CLASS F LIQUOR","CLASS H  
LIQUOR","CLASS I LIQUOR","CLASS J LIQUOR","CLASS K LIQUOR","CLASS L LIQUOR","CLASS M LIQUOR","CLASS N LIQUOR","CLASS O  
LIQUOR","CLASS P LIQUOR"

Business Classification DBA Mangr Name Date Paid Amount Paid

A PARADISE BAR & GRILL LINDA K. PLUYM

A VFW POST #2665 NORMA  J. MONTGOMERY

A WINE STUDIO OF GALENA, INC. JAMIE CARROLL

A THE GRAPE ESCAPE CATHERINE A. KOUZMANOFF

A THE CORNERSTONE, LLP LEHN M. DUHACK

A THE GOLD ROOM RORY C. MACDONALD

A DILLON'S HM, INC. NONE

B HARTIG DRUG COMPANY #5 DENNIS G. WILLS

B WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #5044 MELISSA MCCULLY

B R & L GAS MART MARILYNN MUCHOW

B TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY FRESH MARKET TAMMY L. LEE

B CHOCOLAT' LISA M. STEINLE

B GALENA RIVER WINE & CHEESE TAYLOR, JULIE

B CASEY'S GENERAL STORE #3451 KLOSER, KEVIN

C BLACKHAWK AERIE NO. 952 PATRICIA A. LYDEN-SHILLINGT

C GALENA ELKS TIMOTHY M. WICKLER

D CANNOVA'S PIZZA SHANNA POWELL

D IRISH COTTAGE BOUTIQUE HOTEL & FRANK O'D BASIL CONROY

D VINNY VANUCCHI'S JACK F. COULTER

D LOS AZTECAS II MEXICAN RESTAURANT HECTOR MORAN

D EMMY LOU'S RESTAURANT & LOUNGE REBECCA A. RUCHTI

D DESOTO HOUSE HOTEL DOMINIQUE A. CROSS

D LOG CABIN RESTAURANT & LOUNGE FOTIS RIGOPOULOS

D STONEY CREEK INN OF GALENA KATIE WIENEN

D PERRY STREET BRASSERIE RENEE A. DOWE

Page 5 of 58



City of Galena Table Lists - Liquor License Agenda List 2016 Page:     2

Apr 07, 2016  09:32AM

Business Classification DBA Mangr Name Date Paid Amount Paid

D

D FRIED GREEN TOMATOES FRED L. BONNET

D GOBBIE'S SAM F. RIGOPOULOS

D MARKET HOUSE RESTAURANT, INC. LAURA L. HEFEL

D FRITZ AND FRITES FRED S. GRZESLO

D DURTY GURT'S DEANNE M. LIVINGSTON

D ONE ELEVEN MAIN JACK F. COULTER

D LITTLE TOKYO QI JUN ZHU

D GALENA BREWING CO. KATHLEEN S. CAMERON

D CAMPECHE RESTAURANT ALEX LOPEZ

D AYALAS MEX-AMERICAN STEAK HOUSE, INC. JUAN S. DORANTES AYALA

D EMBE HOSPITALITY, INC. MARY E. FORSBERG

D OTTO'S PLACE LTD JOHN B. SLIMP

D VICTORY CAFE BRUCE/NANETTE GLASGOW

D RAMADA GALENA BETSY R. ACHETT

H GALENA CELLARS KARAN J. LAWLOR

H MASSBACH RIDGE WINERY PEGGY A. HARMSTON

I GALENA BREWING CO. WARREN BELL

J HAPPY JOE'S PIZZA & ICE CREAM GREG G. SCHULZE

J PROCENTO'S PIZZERIA JACK A. EDENS

K GALENA CONVENTION CENTER WILLIAM A. WINSLOW

L FRIED GREEN TOMATOES CO. (CATERING) FRED L. BONNET

M

M FARMERS  GUEST HOUSE DONALD/SUSAN STEFFAN

M CLORAN MANSION BED & BREAKFAST CHERYL A. FARRUGIA

M THE STEAMBOAT HOUSE CAROL L. GEBELT

M ALDRICH GUEST HOUSE ROBERT J. MAHAN

M JAIL HILL INN MATTHEW T. CARROLL

O BLAUM BROTHERS DISTILLING COMPANY MATTHEW  C. BLAUM

P STILLMAN'S  INN DAVID P. ANDERSON

Page 6 of 58



City of Galena Table Lists - Liquor License Agenda List 2016 Page:     3

Apr 07, 2016  09:32AM

Business Classification DBA Mangr Name Date Paid Amount Paid

Report Criteria:

Business.Account Number =  
120,130,140,150,160,1160,1362,220,230,240,1050,1363,1368,1384,250,260,280,290,300,310,320,330,340,360,370,380,390,400,410,420,430,460,530,540,580,64
0,650,1365,1381,490,1020,531,500,510,520,381,1070,1090,1364,1370,1382,1360,350
Business.License Status = "Active"

License Type.License Type = "CLASS A LIQUOR","CLASS B LIQUOR","CLASS C LIQUOR","CLASS D LIQUOR","CLASS F LIQUOR","CLASS H  
LIQUOR","CLASS I LIQUOR","CLASS J LIQUOR","CLASS K LIQUOR","CLASS L LIQUOR","CLASS M LIQUOR","CLASS N LIQUOR","CLASS O  
LIQUOR","CLASS P LIQUOR"

Page 7 of 58



Page 8 of 58



Page 9 of 58



Page 10 of 58



Page 11 of 58



Page 12 of 58



Page 13 of 58



Regular Board Meeting  28 March 2016 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 28 MARCH 2016 
 
 

16C-0105 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 28 March 2016.  
 
16C-0106– ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, and 
Renner 
 
16C-0107– ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0108– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0109 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
None. 
 
16C-0110 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Bonnie Garrity, Galena said she is concerned about the new street lights installed by Jo Carroll 
on Park Avenue and Adams Street as well as Division and Fulton Streets as part of a test 
program.  These lights say they are full cut off, but they are in the blue range, which has been 
shown to be harmful to our health, and the lights are very bright and cause a glare.  They violate 
some of the principals of good lighting - they should be fully cutoff and should only provide light 
where and when it is needed.  It seems wasteful that the lights are shining on houses.  We should 
be asking for yellow light and if possible dim them or put them on timers.  New lighting should be 
better for humans as well as provide cost savings.              
 
Ryan Getz, 1102 Franklin Street, Galena is the author of the memo for agenda item, 16C-0115.  
He would be glad to answer any questions the Council has when discussing Gateway Park and 
Buehler Preserve.   
 
Kathy Oberbroeckling, Galena Chamber of Commerce said she was available if the Council had 
questions concerning the proposed lease for the Depot building.               
 
Jason Allen, 729 Bluff Street Dubuque Iowa is the owner of Aerosol Endeavors.  He asked the 
Council why no one contacted him about his proposal when the changes were being made to the 
Street Performers ordinance.   He worked with the City Administrator and the Police Chief before 
submitting his proposal.  He feels he was treated unfairly and this is wrong.        

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to open the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 
2016-17 Operating Budget.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
 

Page 14 of 58



Regular Board Meeting  28 March 2016 
 

Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier    
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0111 – PUBLIC HEARING ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 OPERATING BUDGET 
 
City Attorney Nack swore in those wishing to testify.   
 
Testimony:  Dave Decker, Director, Galena Arts and Recreation Center, 413 S Bench Street 
Galena said he appreciated the Council considering their request for a monetary donation for the 
2016-2017 fiscal year.  Decker invites any council member to visit the ARC and look at their 
budget, fundraising programs, the building and classes.  With the help of fundraising their 
programs are fairly self-supporting, but administratively they need help.  They provide programs 
that meet the needs of Galena.  Recently they began a 3-4 year old preschool program because 
the community needed it.  Communities provide necessary services for its residents and 
sometimes those services do not pay for themselves.          
 
Steve Repp, 227 S Dodge Street Galena said he too wished the Council would budget for the 
support of the ARC.  He also wanted the Council to know that over the years many of his tour 
patrons have commented on the distinctive antique brick pavers that are part of the downtown 
sidewalks.  He hopes there is some way to keep these bricks.       
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to close the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 
2016-17 Operating Budget.         
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-06 
 
16C-0112 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
MARCH 14, 2016 AND SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2016 
 
16C-0113 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY THE DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION 
FOR SIDEWALK SALES MAY 13-15, 2016 AND AUGUST 12-14, 2016 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-06 as 
presented.       
 
Discussion:  Renner asked that the minutes for the budget work session be corrected to indicate 
that Lincoln was not in attendance.  Hahn agreed.      
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 
 

Page 15 of 58



Regular Board Meeting  28 March 2016 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
16C-0077 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A PROPOSAL BY THE GALENA 
AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TO MODIFY THE TERMS OF THE LEASE FOR THE 
DEPOT 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to deny the proposal by the Galena Chamber of 
Commerce to modify the terms of the lease for the Depot.   
 
Discussion:  Hahn said the lease is a good deal as it is without modifying the terms.  He would 
consider looking at this again if they would come back with a more equal agreement.  Too much 
is being asked of the City – the Chamber needs to take on more.   
 
Fach said when renters pay the utilities they are more conscientious of what they are using.  The 
City taking that on is too much.              
 
Bernstein agreed with Fach.  She said the City might be able to make a little money by renting the  
second floor as proposed by the Chamber but considering the difficulty in renting the main floor it  
does seem unlikely that we would find a tenant.      
 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier       

     
  The motion carried.  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0114 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REQUEST BY DALE GLICK TO 
PERFORM MAINTENANCE AT THE OLD CITY CEMETERY 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the request by Dale Glick to perform 
maintenance at the Old City Cemetery.   
 
Discussion:  Renner said this is a great undertaking and a big job.   
 
Bernstein said it is nice to see someone wanting to volunteer to do this.   
 
Lincoln asked if staff was okay with the nonchemical cleaner that would be used.    
 
Moran said yes.    
 
Hahn said Glick has already worked on a couple other cemeteries in the area and did a great job.      
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0115 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY THE JO DAVIESS 
CONSERVATION FOUNDATION FOR PRESCRIBED BURNING AT GATEWAY PARK AND 
THE BUEHLER PRESERVE FOR ECOLOGICAL PURPOSES 
 

Page 16 of 58



Regular Board Meeting  28 March 2016 
 

Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the request by the Jo Daviess 
Conservation Foundation for prescribed burning at Gateway Park and the Buehler Preserve for 
ecological purposes.        
 
Discussion:  Kieffer asked if the fire chief was ok with what was being proposed.   
 
Renner said they were.  Currently there is no provision for a prescribed burn so if approved 
tonight the Conservation Foundation would work with the fire chief to schedule the burn.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0116 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AUDITING SERVICES CONTRACT 
 
The following bids were received:   
 
O’Connor, Brooks 2016 2017 2018 3‐Year Total 
Financial Statements $22,000 $22,300 $22,700 $67,000 
Single Audit $5,000* $5,000 $5,000* $5,000 
Component Unit $4,625 $4,625 $4,625 $13,875 
$85,875 
 
Wipfli 2016 2017 2018 3‐Year Total 
Financial Statements $22,000 $22,400 $22,800 $67,200 
Single Audit $3,000* $3,000 $3,000* $3,000 
Component Unit $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $3,000 
$73,200 
 
*Note: A single audit is not expected in 2016 or 2018 so the amount has been omitted from 
the 3‐year total 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the Auditing Services Contract with 
O’Connor Brooks in the amount of $85,875.00. 
 
Discussion:  Kieffer thought we should stay with O’Connor Brooks.  We’ve used them for nine 
years, they are a local company and we’ve not had any issues. 
 
Bernstein thought we should considering giving Wipfli the contract.  They would save the city 
some money, they seem well qualified and have good references.   
 
Lincoln agreed.  The savings could go to good use.   
 
Fach asked if there is a lot of additional work for staff when switching to a new company.   
 
Moran said there may be some additional work but it hard to know until you are into the audit.  
Wipfli would follow the same standards but they would be starting from scratch.   
                
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer   
  NAYS:  Lincoln, Bernstein 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
           
  The motion carried.  
 

Page 17 of 58



Regular Board Meeting  28 March 2016 
 

16C-0117 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 
PHASE 3 OF THE GALENA RIVER TRAIL 
  
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve engineering services for Phase 3 of 
the Galena River Trail.     
 
Discussion:  Hahn said IDOT is trying to keep up with all the required changes.  They are 
working with the City to use the FFM money which would offset the increase in costs.  It’s no 
small project and it seems they have a done a good job.  The extra costs are warranted.   
 
Renner said the increase can be offset with the FFM and ITEP grant money.            
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  Lincoln 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0118 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the Warrants as presented, 16C-
0118.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0119 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Gateway Park - Fach thought the City should secure or protect the PVC pipes on the concrete 
slab in order to prevent vandalism.   
 
Street Names – Fach asked how streets are named.  Does a request always come to the City 
Council for approval?  How did Sproule Lane come to be?   
 
Renner said there is a plat map that we refer to.       
 
Moran said that street was part of the subdivision plat when the final plat was approved.  The 
streets are named by the developer.    
 
Volunteerism – Fach thought the community is really in need of a volunteer program/coordinator.  
There is a great need for volunteers and the volunteers are out there.  We need to find a better 
way to bring them together.       
 
16C-0120 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Moran said Prairie Ridge has submitted their plans and they obtained and paid for the permit – 
about $56,000.  This is now in the plan review process so there won’t be any major construction 
happening just now.  They did obtain a land disturbance permit so they could create a staging 
area for equipment and materials.  Bids have gone out for the City Hall solar project which are 
due back in April.  Bids for Phase Three of the Galena River Trail have been sent by the 
Department of Transportation and are due back in April or May.  Roadside cleanup has begun 

Page 18 of 58



Regular Board Meeting  28 March 2016 
 

with community volunteers working to pick up garbage and litter that accumulated over the winter.  
This volunteer project has been in place for several years.                  
 
16C-0121 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Renner commented on the success of the Easter Egg hunt held at Grant Park.  Thank you to 
Dillon’s who sponsors the event and to all the volunteers including Bobby Hahn and Dave 
Decker, who make this happen.        
 
16C-0122 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 
 

 Collective negotiating matters and deliberations concerning salary schedules, Section 2 (c) 
(2)  

 Review of Executive Session Minutes, Section 2 (c) (21) 
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
The meeting recessed at 7:03 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 7:50 p.m. 
 
16C-0122 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Hanh moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Westemeier 
  
  The motion carried.  
 
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Deb Price  
Deputy City Clerk         

Page 19 of 58



Special Board Meeting     04 April 2016 
 

1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 04 APRIL 2016 
 
16C-B008 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Terry Renner called the special meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 
101 Green Street on 04 April 2016.   
 
16C-B009 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
16C-B010 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-B011 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-B012 – REVIEW OF PROPOSED FY 2015-16 OPERATING BUDGET 
 
Mark Moran, City Administrator, gave a brief overview of the areas left unresolved at the last 
meeting which included the following: 
 
 TCEDA Donation ($7,500) 
 ARC Donation  ($20,000) 
 History Museum Utilities Request ($5,000) 
 Radar Speed Control Sign ($10,000) 
  
Projects and purchased not funded 
 
 Downtown Sidewalk Replacement ($75,000) 
 Sidewalk to Cobblestone ($47,000) 
 Employee Compensation 
 
Moran reported the General Fund has a surplus of $177,054 and 20 out of 23 funds are in 
compliance with fund balance requirements.  Funding for these items would come out of the 
General Fund.   
 
A question was raised if the Shuttle Fund money could be moved out.  Moran advised staff is 
looking at the possibility of doing some work to the Commerce Street lot which would provide 
more parking. The cost would be approximately $40,000.  Washington Street would be combined 
with the lot to provide 12 additional stalls.  .   
  
Moran recommended attempting to maintain a balanced budget; however, stated if we needed to 
go into a deficit this would be the year to do it.  He noted it wouldn’t be irresponsible to go into a 
deficit budget.   
 
Council discussed each item.  
 
TCEDA –   Council discussed and agreed to fund $5,000 for TCEDA for economic development 
for the city.   
 
ARC Funding – Council agreed to fund $15,000 for the Galena ARC.   
 

Page 20 of 58



Special Board Meeting     04 April 2016 
 

2 

History Museum – Council agreed to fund $5,000 for maintenance and electric for the museum.   
 
Radar Speed Control Sign – Council discussed a radar speed control sign.  A sign could be  
purchased on line for $4,999.  Elizabeth currently has one that was funded by the Dubuque 
Greyhound Park Racing Association.  Hahn suggested looking into solar mounted post signs vs. 
the larger portable sign.  He feels they would be more useful.  Council agreed to fund $5,000 for a 
solar speed sign with the recommendation that Chief Huntington look into a Dubuque Greyhound 
Park Racing Grant as well as investigate the sizes and portability of the signs.   
 
Downtown Sidewalk Replacement – Council agreed to fund $110,700 for downtown sidewalk 
replacement based on the repair plan presented.   
 
Cobblestone Sidewalks – Council agreed to remove Cobblestone sidewalks and put the money 
toward downtown sidewalk repairs.   
 
Employee Compensation – Council agreed to wait on discussions until the next meeting with 
the hopes we will get a firm handle on the Police negotiations.   
 
16C-B013 – REVIEW OF BUDGET PROCESS SCHEDULE 
 
The budget will be presented for approval at the April 25, 2016 meeting.   
 
16C-B014 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call: AYES: Fach, Greene, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 
 NAYS: None 
            
 The motion carried. 
                       
The meeting adjourned at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 21 of 58



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
  
 

To: Mayor & Council 

From: Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Date: 04/07/16 

Re: Tour Operator’s License 

The following businesses have returned applications for a Trolley Service License for 2016/2017: 
  
 River Trails Transit Lines, Inc. – dba Tri-State Travel 
 Brill’s Trolley Tours – dba Galena Trolley Tours & Depot Theater 
 Amelia’s Galena Ghost Tours, Inc. 
 
The following persons have returned an application for a Tour Guide Business for 2015/2016: 
 
 Richard T. Mulcahey, Meet Galena Tours 
 Galena Jo Daviess County Historical Society 
 Steve Repp, Old Fashioned Tours of Galena 
 
All applications are available at City Hall for inspection.   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 22 of 58



GRANT PARK MASTERPLAN PROJECT LIST 
 
The following is a list of short term and long term items needed to make significant improvements to Grant Park.  Like Turner Hall we have to start out with the rough work and 
the work needed to stabilize the park before we can get into the really substantial improvements.   
 
Short Term 
 

Task  Responsible Party  Start Date  Notes 
 

Tree work as described in the tree survey prepared by Jon Kelley of 
Mississippi Valley Tree Service.   

 
Contractor 

 
Bid/contract early summer 2016 
for fall 2016 work 

 
City  crew  to  assist  with  grinding  and 
hauling 

Clean up of all plant beds and around the fountain.  Come up with a 
basic improved planting plan for 2016 while we focus on the 
ultimate design and fundraising for the more improved versions.    

City  crew  to  remove 
overgrown bushes 

Spring 2016  Study  possibility  of  removing  planting 
adjacent to the foundation as part of the 
master plan 

Aerate and seed bare areas.  Clean up pine needles and other debris. 
Develop specification for seed, mulch and fertilizer for park 
use.  Something like Madison Parks Mix. 

City  perform  clean  up 
and  obtain  quotes  for 
additional services 

Clean  up  and  mulch  in  spring 
2016.    Aeration  and  seeding  in 
spring of 2017 

Turf  work  to  be  coordinated  with  tree 
pruning/removal  and  sidewalk  removal 
and replacement 

Fountain repairs and improvements to make it function correctly.    Galena Foundation   Summer 2016  Repair  cracking  at  base,  paint,  pump 
replacement  

Pergola clean, repair, paint, better light fixtures.  Paint to match 
Gazebo. 

City to obtain quotes 
for repair 

Spring 2016  Attempt to repair and paint in spring 
2016 

Shelter clean, repair, paint, better light fixtures.  Paint to match 
Gazebo. 

City to obtain quotes 
for repair 

Spring 2016  Summer 2016 repair and spot paint 

Replace roof on gazebo.  City to obtain quotes  Fall 2016  Consider matching shingles on the 
pavilion 

Fix pedestrian traffic erosion problem at pedestrian bridge possibly 
by extending stone wall. 

City to obtain quotes  Fall 2016  Combine with stair removal and removal 
of south sidewalk to nowhere 

   

Page 23 of 58



Short Term Cont.   
 

Task  Responsible Party  Start Date  Notes 
Replace concrete around base of Soldier’s Monument.  City to obtain quotes  Fall 2016  Combine with stair removal and removal 

of south sidewalk to nowhere 
Remove north side stairs to nowhere.  City to obtain quotes  Fall 2016   
Remove south side sidewalk to nowhere.  Replace in some fashion if 
CN railroad would allow a pedestrian RR crossing on Johnson Street 
over to bike trail. 

City to obtain quotes  Fall 2016   

Paint all lamp posts and all other metal items.  Change to black as 
the standard color for metal work in Grant Park. 

City in the process of 
obtaining quotes 

Summer 2016   

Clean up Van Buren Street gateway to Grant’s Home and possibly 
put low maintenance greens on hillside on street right‐of‐way to 
eliminate brush and brambles. 

City crew  Spring 2016   

Work with Janelle Keeffer to improve designated areas for park 
rental such as green space by Grant statue, fountain, pergola, 
gazebo, etc. 

City staff  Summer 2016   

 
Long Term 
 

Task  Responsible Party  Start Date  Notes 
Redesign and reconstruct Van Buren Street Entrance and the Elliptical 
Garden to become the WOW of Grant Park. 

     

Redesign and reconstruct fountain area to improve sight lines in all 
directions along with visual aesthetics. 

     

Redesign beds and sidewalks at southwest end of the elliptical 
sidewalks to reduce pedestrian traffic damage and reduce ongoing 
maintenance.  Possibly eliminate beds altogether as this has become 
a photo op high traffic area with downtown and Galena Green in the 
background. 

     

   

Page 24 of 58



Long Term Cont. 
 

Task  Responsible Party  Start Date  Notes 
Upgrade Johnson and Jackson Street entrances to better funnel 
pedestrian traffic onto sidewalks.  Make them more inviting from the 
street.  Do something similar with the pedestrian bridge entrance 
although space is limited by a tight design. 

     

Handicap access at Jackson Street entrance.  (Not sure we can get 1 
in 12 slope on the sidewalk; may have to enter park with sidewalk 
down closer to shelter.)  Provide handicap parking on or near 
entrance.  

     

Improved signage and wayfinding both inside the park and also to 
direct people to Grant’s home via Van Buren Street, downtown, 
depot, bike trail, etc.  Include in a Grant Park app. 

     

Re‐do riverside embankment in low maintenance plantings that 
compliment “Grant Park letters” and trees in on the flat just above 
the embankment, especially in the fall. 

     

Terraces or natural turf seating on hillside above playground area to 
encourage leisure time in park. 

     

Johnson Street restoration and future use as part of Grant Park 
experience.  Terraces or natural turf seating on hillside above 
Johnson Street to encourage leisure time in park. 

     

Improvements to Van Buren Street corridor to better connect Grant 
Park to Grant’s home in a more inviting manner.  Reduce 
maintenance costs for both City of Galena and Illinois State Historic 
Sites. 

     

 
Other 

 Build community involvement by promoting what is happening in Grant Park.  Volunteer gardening program.  Donation program.  Contributions and establishment of a 
Grant Park Fund with The Galena Foundation.  

 Develop a maintenance plan for Grant Park and a recommendation to city administration on an annual maintenance budget supported by Galena Foundation funds. 

Page 25 of 58



1 | P a g e  
 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND MARY HALSTEAD     
 
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2016, by and between 
Mary Halstead, an independent contractor, hereinafter referred to as (“Contractor”), and the City of Galena, an 
Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where Contractor 
agrees to provide janitorial services to City in the maintenance of certain property, facilities and equipment, 
reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be made, 
the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Contractor shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall involve the cleaning of 

the following City facilities: 
 

a. City Hall, 101 Green Street 
 

b. Public Restrooms, 101 Green Street 
 

c. North public restrooms at Rec Park, Field Street 
 

d. South public restrooms at Rec Park, Field Street 
 

e. Public restrooms at Grant Park, Park Avenue 
 

2. City agrees to engage the services of Contractor and agrees to pay Contractor for services at the 
rates listed below for each individual facility: 

 
a. City Hall, 101 Green Street ($480 per month) 

 
b. Public Restrooms, 101 Green Street ($450 per month) 

 
c. North public restrooms at Rec Park, Field Street ($450 per month) 

 
d. South public restrooms at Rec Park, Field Street ($450 per month) 

 
e. Public restrooms at Grant Park, Park Avenue ($450 per month) 

 
3. The above‐stated rates are to continue in force and effect for the periods commencing and 

concluding as follows: 
 

a. City Hall, 101 Green Street (May 1, 2015‐April 30, 2017) 
 

b. Public Restrooms, 101 Green Street (May 1, 2015‐April 30, 2017) 
 

Page 26 of 58



2 | P a g e  
 

c. North public restrooms at Rec Park, Field Street (May 1, 2015‐April 30, 2017) 
 

d. South public restrooms at Rec Park, Field Street  (May 1, 2015‐April 30, 2017) 
 

e. Public restrooms at Grant Park, Park Avenue  (May 1, 2015‐April 30, 2017) 
 

4. Contractor shall clean each facility in accordance with the schedule attached hereto and made part 
hereof as Exhibit A.   

 
5. Cleaning shall include shall include, but is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, scrubbing, 

polishing, vacuuming and collecting and depositing refuse and recyclables in all areas of the 
buildings, including restrooms, rooms, kitchen, and hallways.  It is understood that there may be 
special occasions when cleaning outside of the schedule is required.   Any such extraordinary 
hours, and the compensation for same, have been accounted for by the parties in the 
compensation terms described in paragraph one hereof.  An inventory of fixtures to be cleaned is 
provided as Exhibit B, attached hereto and made part hereof.  The specific cleaning requirements 
for each facility are described in Exhibits C and D, attached hereto and made part hereof.       

 
6. The City shall provide all cleaning agents, equipment, materials, and tools required.  The City shall 

provide all paper products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can liners.  Contractor shall 
inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  Contractor shall also inform City of 
any equipment malfunctions or problems or damages relating to the buildings, facilities, utility 
systems, fixtures, tables, chairs, etc. 

 
7. Contractor must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties and tasks necessary to 

satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

8. Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, employees, agents 
and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, actions or suits of whatsoever 
character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way connected with Contractor’s performance of 
this Agreement, the operations of the Contractor or the failure of the Contractor to comply with 
the provisions and requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
9. In the event the Contractor hires any employees, agents or servants to assist the Contractor in the 

performance of this Agreement, then the Contractor shall be required to provide worker’s 
compensation insurance coverage on behalf of said party or parties and agrees to name the City as 
an additional insured on said policy.  Said worker’s compensation insurance shall be for the 
purpose of insuring both the Contractor and the City against any worker’s compensation liability or 
similar claim that may be made pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  
A copy of said worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided to the City in such 
event. 

 
10. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor under this agreement, rather than a 

covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, and no act, action, or omission to act 
by the Contractor, or any of her principals, officers, directors, employees, or agents, shall in any 
way obligate or be binding upon the City or its officials.  Contractor covenants and agrees that he 
shall not represent to any third party that she or any of her principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents are officials, agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Contractor’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

Page 27 of 58



3 | P a g e  
 

a. City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of the Contractor but not the 
means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b. Contractor’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract payments) and not “wages”, 

and from which such payments no withholding will be made; 
 

c. Contractor shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month period) for City; 
 

d. Contractor shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, pension, or any other 
“employee” type benefits. 

 
11. Contractor affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business that shall remain an 

equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its employment practices or in the 
award of contracts and as such does not discriminate based on race, color, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin,  age,  disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  
marital  status,  in  accordance  with applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 
12. Contractor agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, statutes and regulations, 

including but not limited to the equal employment and affirmative  action  provisions  pertaining to  
public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  Illinois Human Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐105 
of Chapter 775 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes as amended), attached as Exhibit E. 

 
13. This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 

 
14. It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and conditions, 

subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 
 

15. This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

 
16. This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties concerning the 

subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing signed by both parties. 
 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

Page 28 of 58



4 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
            CONTRACTOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 29 of 58



5 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit A:  City of Galena Public Buildings Cleaning Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B:  City of Galena Public Buildings Inventory of Fixtures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Facility 

 
Address/Location 

 
Season 

Days Per 
Week 

 
Weekly Schedule 

Approximate 
Sq. Feet 

City Hall  101 Green Street  Annual  2  Tuesday and 
Friday (or 
Sat/Sun) 

7,000 

Public Restrooms  101 Green Street   Annual  7  Daily   360 
South Recreation 
Park Restrooms 

Field Street  Mid‐April‐Mid‐
October 

7  Daily  300 

North Recreation 
Park Restrooms 

Field Street  Mid‐April‐Mid‐
October 

7  Daily  430 

Grant Park 
Restrooms 

Park Avenue  Mid‐April‐Mid‐
October 

7  Daily  504 

 
Fixtures 

 
City Hall 

101 Green Street 
Pubic Restrooms 

North 
Rec Park 

South Rec 
Park 

 
Grant Park 

            
Sinks  3  4  4  3  4 
Toilets  2  4  4  4  5 
Urinals  0  2  3  2  2 
Mirrors  2  4  4  4  4 

Page 30 of 58



6 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit C:  City of Galena City Hall Cleaning Requirements 
 

 
CITY HALL 

 
Task 

City Hall 101 
Green Street 

 
Da

ily
 

Dust to remove all cobwebs.   X 
Dust all desks, table tops, and other horizontal 
surfaces.  

 
X 

Damp mop all tile and concrete floors with a 
disinfectant solution. 

 
X 

Vacuum all carpet floors and rugs.  Clean spots prior 
to vacuuming. 

X 

Spot clean doorknobs, doorjambs, and walls.  X 
Damp wipe vinyl chairs.  X 
Wash clean and dry mirrors.  Dust frame of mirrors.  X 
Wash and dry all sinks inside and out and polish the 
metal fixtures.   

 
X 

Clean all restroom toilets with disinfectant solution.   X 
Refill all dispensers, including soap, toilet paper, and 
paper towel.  

 
X 

Empty office recycling and trash containers into 
centralized containers.    

 
X 

Other general cleaning as may be required to 
maintain a clean and orderly interior. 

X 

 

Page 31 of 58



7 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit D:  City of Galena Public Restroom Cleaning Requirements 
 
PUBLIC 

RESTROOMS 
 

Task 
101 Green 
Street 

North Rec 
Park 

South Rec  
Park 

 
Grant Park 

 
Da

ily
 

Dust to remove all cobwebs  X  X  X  X 
Damp mop all floors with a 
disinfectant solution. 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Spot clean all stall 
partitions, knobs, 
doorjambs, and walls.  

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Wash clean and dry 
mirrors.  Dust frame of 
mirrors.  Clean light bulbs. 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Wash and dry all sinks 
inside and out and polish 
the metal fixtures.   

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Wash and dry drinking 
fountain. 

X  X     

Clean all restroom toilets 
and urinals with 
disinfectant solution.  

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Refill all dispensers, 
including soap, toilet paper, 
and sanitary napkin.  

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Empty, spray with 
disinfectant, and wipe dry 
all sanitary napkin disposal 
containers. 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

Other general cleaning that 
may be required to 
maintain a clean and 
orderly appearance.  

       

  Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

 
Complete wash, clean and 
dry all restroom walls and 
partitions.  Stainless steel 
to be polished. 

 
X 

     
X 

  Bi
‐a
nn

ua
lly
 

 

 
Machine wash and scrub 
floors. 

 
X 

     

Page 32 of 58



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE WORKER 
 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. FOR TURNER HALL 
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of April, 2016, by and between Jeremy 
White, DBA White Construction Co. Inc., an independent contractor, hereinafter referred to as 
(“Maintenance Worker”), and the City of Galena, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred 
to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where 
Maintenance Worker agrees to provide maintenance services to City in the maintenance of certain 
property, facilities and equipment, reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a 
part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be 
made, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  City agrees to engage the services of Maintenance Worker in City’s 
Janitorial/Maintenance Department, in the City of Galena, and agrees to pay 
Maintenance Worker for services and materials at the rate of Three Hundred and Fifty 
Dollars ($350.00) per month.  The above‐stated rate is to continue in force and effect for 
the period commencing on the date first above written and concluding April 30, 2017. 

 
2.  Maintenance Worker shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall 

involve the maintenance and cleaning of Turner Hall.  Maintenance Worker shall clean 
and also perform minor maintenance.  Said cleaning and maintenance shall include, but 
is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, scrubbing and collecting and depositing 
refuse in all restrooms, rooms, kitchen, main hall, hallways and furniture, etc.  It is 
understood that the use of the Turner Hall complex may, from time‐to‐time, require 
extraordinary hours of work.  Any such extraordinary hours, and the compensation for 
same, have been accounted for by the parties in the compensation terms described in 
paragraph one hereof.  Maintenance Worker shall clean Turner Hall once a week, before 
and after each performance or occupancy and as necessary during long running 
performances and occupancies.   

 
3.  The City shall provide all cleaning materials required.  The City shall provide all paper 

products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can plastic liners.  Maintenance 
Worker shall inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  Maintenance 
Worker shall also inform City of any equipment malfunctions or problems relating to the 
building’s structures, facilities, utility systems, fixtures, tables, chairs, etc. 

 
4.  Maintenance worker must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties 

and tasks necessary to satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

5.  It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and 
conditions, subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 

   

Page 33 of 58



 

  

2

6.  Maintenance worker agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend City, its officers, 
employees, agents and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, 
actions or suits of whatsoever character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way 
connected with maintenance worker’s performance of this Agreement, the operations 
of the maintenance worker or the failure of the maintenance worker to comply with the 
provisions and requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
7.    In the event maintenance worker hires any employees, agents or servants to assist 

maintenance worker in the performance of this Agreement, then maintenance worker 
shall be required to provide worker’s compensation insurance coverage on behalf of 
said party or parties and agrees to name the City as an additional insured on said policy.  
Said worker’s compensation insurance shall be for the purpose of insuring both 
maintenance worker and the City against any worker’s compensation liability or similar 
claim that may be made pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this 
Agreement.  A copy of said worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided 
to the City in such event. 

 
8.  Maintenance Worker shall at all times be an independent contractor under this 

agreement, rather than a covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, 
and no act, action, or omission to act by Maintenance Worker, or any of her principals, 
officers, directors, employees, or agents, shall in any way obligate or be binding upon 
the City or its officials.  Maintenance Worker covenants and agrees that he shall not 
represent to any third party that he or any of his principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents are officials, agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Maintenance Worker’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

a)  City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of Maintenance Worker 
but not the means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b)  Maintenance Worker’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract 

payments) and not “wages”, and from which such payments no withholding will 
be made; 

 
c)  Maintenance Worker shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month 

period) for City; 
 

d)  Maintenance Worker shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, 
pension, or any other “employee” type benefits. 

 
9.  Maintenance Worker affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business 

that shall remain an equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its 
employment practices or in the award of contracts and as such does not discriminate 
based on race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, national 
origin,  age,  disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  marital  status,  in  
accordance  with applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 

Page 34 of 58



 

  

3

10.  Maintenance Worker agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, 
statutes and regulations, including but not limited to the equal employment and 
affirmative  action  provisions  pertaining to  public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  
Illinois Human Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐105 of Chapter 775 of the Illinois 
Compiled Statutes as amended). 

 
11.  This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 
 
12.  It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and 

conditions, subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 
 
13.  This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

14.  This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties 
concerning the subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing 
signed by both parties. 

 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
                     MAINTENANCE WORKER 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 35 of 58



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. FOR  
 

THE PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING       
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2016, by and 
between Jeremy White, DBA White Construction Co. Inc. an independent contractor, hereinafter 
referred to as (“Contractor”), and the City of Galena, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where Contractor 
agrees to provide janitorial services to City in the maintenance of certain property, facilities and 
equipment, reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be 
made, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  City agrees to engage the services of Contractor and agrees to pay Contractor for 
services at the rate of One‐Hundred and Ten Dollars ($110.00) per month.  The above‐
stated rate is to continue in force and effect for the period commencing on the date first 
above written and concluding April 30, 2017. 

 
2.  Contractor shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall involve the 

cleaning of the City of Galena Public Works Building. 
 
3.  Contractor shall clean each facility once weekly in accordance with the Public Works 

Janitorial Contractor Checklist attached hereto and made part hereof.   
 
4.    Cleaning shall include shall include, but is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, 

scrubbing, polishing, vacuuming and collecting and depositing refuse and recyclables in 
all areas of the buildings, including restrooms, office, break room, and hallways.  It is 
understood that there may be special occasions when cleaning outside of the schedule 
is required.   Any such extraordinary hours, and the compensation for same, have been 
accounted for by the parties in the compensation terms described in paragraph one 
hereof.   

 
5.  The City shall provide all cleaning agents, equipment, materials, and tools required.  The 

City shall provide all paper products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can 
liners.  Contractor shall inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  
Contractor shall also inform City of any equipment malfunctions or problems or 
damages relating to the buildings, facilities, utility systems, fixtures, tables, chairs, etc. 

 
6.  Contractor must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties and tasks 

necessary to satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

Page 36 of 58



Page 2 of 3 
 

7.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, 
employees, agents and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, 
actions or suits of whatsoever character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way 
connected with Contractor’s performance of this Agreement, the operations of the 
Contractor or the failure of the Contractor to comply with the provisions and 
requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
8.    In the event the Contractor hires any employees, agents or servants to assist the 

Contractor in the performance of this Agreement, then the Contractor shall be required 
to provide worker’s compensation insurance coverage on behalf of said party or parties 
and agrees to name the City as an additional insured on said policy.  Said worker’s 
compensation insurance shall be for the purpose of insuring both the Contractor and the 
City against any worker’s compensation liability or similar claim that may be made 
pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  A copy of said 
worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided to the City in such event. 

 
9.  Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor under this agreement, rather 

than a covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, and no act, action, or 
omission to act by the Contractor, or any of her principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents, shall in any way obligate or be binding upon the City or its 
officials.  Contractor covenants and agrees that he shall not represent to any third party 
that she or any of her principals, officers, directors, employees, or agents are officials, 
agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Contractor’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

a)  City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of the Contractor but 
not the means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b)  Contractor’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract payments) and not 

“wages”, and from which such payments no withholding will be made; 
 

c)  Contractor shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month period) for 
City; 

 
d)  Contractor shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, pension, or any 

other “employee” type benefits. 
 

10.  Contractor affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business that shall 
remain an equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its employment 
practices or in the award of contracts and as such does not discriminate based on race, 
color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin,  age,  
disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  marital  status,  in  accordance  with 
applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 
11.  Contractor agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, statutes and 

regulations, including but not limited to the equal employment and affirmative  action  
provisions  pertaining to  public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  Illinois Human 

Page 37 of 58



Page 3 of 3 
 

Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐105 of Chapter 775 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 
as amended). 

 
12.  This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 
 
13.  It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and 

conditions, subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 
 
14.  This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

15.  This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties 
concerning the subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing 
signed by both parties. 

 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
            CONTRACTOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 38 of 58



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 7, 2016 

RE:    Janitorial Services Bids for the Market House Restrooms   
 
 
Since 2008, the City has been responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Market 
House restroom building.  For the past 11 years, Kathleen Doig has performed janitorial services 
at restrooms.  The City does not have a formal contract with Kathleen.  In an attempt to 
standardize services and contracts for all of our contracted janitorial services, our staff recently 
issued bids for the janitorial services at the Market House restrooms.  I am writing to present 
the bid results with the hope of selecting a contractor and executing an agreement effective 
May 1.  
 
Bidders were provided detailed specifications for cleaning services.  Cleaning is expected 
seven days per week.  The bids results are shown in Table 1 below.  
 

 Table 1.  Market House Janitorial Bid Results 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I am attaching the proposed agreement that would be executed with the selected bidder 
for the period May 1, 2016 through April 30, 2017.  Please note that the proposed 
contract may be terminated with 30 days’ notice by either party. 

 

Contractor  Monthly Fee 
Kathleen Doig  $450 
HyKleen Services‐Dubuque  $521 
Mary Halstead  $578 
Beautiful Restorations‐Galena  $750 

 

Page 39 of 58



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 

AT THE MARKET HOUSE PUBLIC RESTROOMS BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA  
 

AND   _______________________________     
 
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2016, by and between 
____________________, an independent contractor, hereinafter referred to as (“Contractor”), and the City of 
Galena, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where Contractor 
agrees to provide janitorial services to City in the maintenance of certain property, facilities and equipment, 
reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be made, 
the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Contractor shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall involve the cleaning of 

the following City facilities: 
 

a. Market House public restrooms at 121 North Commerce Street, Galena, Illinois 61036  
 

2. City agrees to engage the services of Contractor and agrees to pay Contractor for services at the 
rates listed below for each individual facility: 

 
a. Market House public restrooms ($_________ per month) 

 
3. The above‐stated rates are to continue in force and effect for the periods commencing and 

concluding as follows: 
 

a. Market House public restrooms (May 1, 2016‐April 30, 2017) 
 

4. Contractor shall clean the facility in accordance with the schedule attached hereto and made part 
hereof as Exhibit A.   

 
5. Cleaning shall include shall include, but is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, scrubbing, 

polishing, vacuuming and collecting and depositing refuse and recyclables in all areas of the 
building, including restrooms, entry area and supply closet.  It is understood that there may be 
special occasions when cleaning outside of the schedule is required.   Any such extraordinary 
hours, and the compensation for same, have been accounted for by the parties in the 
compensation terms described in paragraph one hereof.  An inventory of fixtures to be cleaned is 
provided as Exhibit B, attached hereto and made part hereof.  The specific cleaning requirements 
for each facility are described in Exhibit C, attached hereto and made part hereof.       

 
6. The City shall provide all cleaning agents, equipment, materials, and tools required.  The City shall 

provide all paper products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can liners.  Contractor shall 
inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  Contractor shall also inform City of 
any equipment malfunctions or problems or damages relating to the building, facility, utility 
systems, fixtures, etc. 

Page 40 of 58



 
7. Contractor must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties and tasks necessary to 

satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

8. Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, employees, agents 
and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, actions or suits of whatsoever 
character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way connected with Contractor’s performance of 
this Agreement, the operations of the Contractor or the failure of the Contractor to comply with 
the provisions and requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
9. In the event the Contractor hires any employees, agents or servants to assist the Contractor in the 

performance of this Agreement, then the Contractor shall be required to provide worker’s 
compensation insurance coverage on behalf of said party or parties and agrees to name the City as 
an additional insured on said policy.  Said worker’s compensation insurance shall be for the 
purpose of insuring both the Contractor and the City against any worker’s compensation liability or 
similar claim that may be made pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  
A copy of said worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided to the City in such 
event. 

 
10. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor under this agreement, rather than a 

covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, and no act, action, or omission to act 
by the Contractor, or any of her principals, officers, directors, employees, or agents, shall in any 
way obligate or be binding upon the City or its officials.  Contractor covenants and agrees that he 
shall not represent to any third party that she or any of her principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents are officials, agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Contractor’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

a. City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of the Contractor but not the 
means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b. Contractor’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract payments) and not “wages”, 

and from which such payments no withholding will be made; 
 

c. Contractor shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month period) for City; 
 

d. Contractor shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, pension, or any other 
“employee” type benefits. 

 
11. Contractor affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business that shall remain an 

equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its employment practices or in the 
award of contracts and as such does not discriminate based on race, color, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin,  age,  disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  
marital  status,  in  accordance  with applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 
12. Contractor agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, statutes and regulations, 

including but not limited to the equal employment and affirmative  action  provisions  pertaining to  
public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  Illinois Human Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐105 
of Chapter 775 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes as amended), attached as Exhibit D. 

Page 41 of 58



13. This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 
 

14. It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and conditions, 
subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 

 
15. This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, 

successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

16. This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties concerning the 
subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing signed by both parties. 

 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
            CONTRACTOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 42 of 58



Exhibit A:  City of Galena Market House Public Restrooms Cleaning 
Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B:  City of Galena Market House Public Restrooms Inventory of 
Fixtures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Facility 

 
Address/Location

 
Season 

Days 
Per 
Week

 
Weekly 
Schedule 

Approximate 
Sq. Feet 

 
Market House 
Restrooms 

 
Commerce 
Street 

 
Annual 

 
7 

 
Daily 

 
440 

 
Fixtures 

Market  
House 

    
Sinks  4 
Toilets  6 
Urinals  2 
Mirrors  4 
Drinking Fountain  1 

Page 43 of 58



Exhibit C:  City of Galena Market House Public Restroom Cleaning 
Requirements 

 
 

PUBLIC 
RESTROOMS 

 
Task 

Market 
House 

 
Da

ily
 

Dust to remove all cobwebs and dust  X 
Damp mop all floors with a disinfectant 
solution. 

 
X 

Spot clean all stall partitions, knobs, 
doorjambs, and walls.  

 
X 

Wash clean and dry mirrors.  Dust 
frame of mirrors.  Clean light bulbs. 

 
X 

Wash and dry all sinks inside and out 
and polish the metal fixtures.   

 
X 

Wash and dry drinking fountain.  X 
Clean all restroom toilets and urinals 
with disinfectant solution.  

 
X 

Refill all dispensers, including soap, 
toilet paper, and sanitary napkin.  

 
X 

Empty, spray with disinfectant, and 
wipe dry all sanitary napkin disposal 
containers. 

 
X 

Other general cleaning that may be 
required to maintain a clean and 
orderly appearance.  

 
X 

  Bi
‐a
nn

ua
lly
 

 

 
Machine wash and scrub floors (or 
alternative method of cleaning to 
achieve equal or better results). 

 
X 

Page 44 of 58



Exhibit D 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS 
(775 ILCS 5/) Illinois Human Rights Act. 

 
(775 ILCS 5/2‐105) (from Ch. 68, par. 2‐105)  

    Sec. 2‐105. Equal Employment Opportunities; Affirmative Action.  
 

    (A) Public Contracts. Every party to a public contract and every eligible bidder shall:  
        (1) Refrain from unlawful discrimination and discrimination based on citizenship status in employment 
and undertake affirmative action to assure equality of employment opportunity and eliminate the effects of 
past discrimination; 
        (2) Comply with the procedures and requirements of the Department's regulations concerning equal 
employment opportunities and affirmative action; 
        (3) Provide such information, with respect to its employees and applicants for employment, and 
assistance as the Department may reasonably request; 
        (4) Have written sexual harassment policies that shall include, at a minimum, the following information: 
(i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual harassment under State law; (iii) a 
description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) the vendor's internal complaint process including 
penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department and 
the Commission; (vi) directions on how to contact the Department and Commission; and (vii) protection 
against retaliation as provided by Section 6‐101 of this Act. A copy of the policies shall be provided to the 
Department upon request. 
    (B) State Agencies. Every State executive department, State agency, board, commission, and 
instrumentality shall:  
        (1) Comply with the procedures and requirements of the Department's regulations concerning equal 
employment opportunities and affirmative action; 
        (2) Provide such information and assistance as the Department may request. 
        (3) Establish, maintain, and carry out a continuing affirmative action plan consistent with this Act and the 
regulations of the Department designed to promote equal opportunity for all State residents in every aspect 
of agency personnel policy and practice. For purposes of these affirmative action plans, the race and national 
origin categories to be included in the plans are: American Indian or Alaska Native, Asian, Black or African 
American, Hispanic or Latino, Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander.  This plan shall include a current 
detailed status report: 
            (a) indicating, by each position in State service, the number, percentage, and average salary of 
individuals employed by race, national origin, sex and disability, and any other category that the Department 
may require by rule; 
            (b) identifying all positions in which the percentage of the people employed by race, national origin, 
sex and disability, and any other category that the Department may require by rule, is less than four‐fifths of 
the percentage of each of those components in the State work force; 
            (c) specifying the goals and methods for increasing the percentage by race, national origin, sex and 
disability, and any other category that the Department may require by rule, in State positions; 
            (d) indicating progress and problems toward meeting equal employment opportunity goals, including, 
if applicable, but not limited to, Department of Central Management Services recruitment efforts, publicity, 
promotions, and use of options designating positions by linguistic abilities; 
            (e) establishing a numerical hiring goal for the employment of qualified persons with disabilities in the 
agency as a whole, to be based on the proportion of people with work disabilities in the Illinois labor force as 
reflected in the most recent decennial Census. 

Page 45 of 58



Page 7 of 8 
 

        (4) If the agency has 1000 or more employees, appoint a full‐time Equal Employment Opportunity 
officer, subject to the Department's approval, whose duties shall include: 
            (a) Advising the head of the particular State agency with respect to the preparation of equal 
employment opportunity programs, procedures, regulations, reports, and the agency's affirmative action 
plan. 
            (b) Evaluating in writing each fiscal year the sufficiency of the total agency program for equal 
employment opportunity and reporting thereon to the head of the agency with recommendations as to any 
improvement or correction in recruiting, hiring or promotion needed, including remedial or disciplinary 
action with respect to managerial or supervisory employees who have failed to cooperate fully or who are in 
violation of the program. 
            (c) Making changes in recruitment, training and promotion programs and in hiring and promotion 
procedures designed to eliminate discriminatory practices when authorized. 
            (d) Evaluating tests, employment policies, practices and qualifications and reporting to the head of the 
agency and to the Department any policies, practices and qualifications that have unequal impact by race, 
national origin as required by Department rule, sex or disability or any other category that the Department 
may require by rule, and to assist in the recruitment of people in underrepresented classifications. This 
function shall be performed in cooperation with the State Department of Central Management Services. 
            (e) Making any aggrieved employee or applicant for employment aware of his or her remedies under 
this Act. 
            In any meeting, investigation, negotiation, conference, or other proceeding between a State employee 
and an Equal Employment Opportunity officer, a State employee (1) who is not covered by a collective 
bargaining agreement and (2) who is the complaining party or the subject of such proceeding may be 
accompanied, advised and represented by (1) an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois or (2) 
a representative of an employee organization whose membership is composed of employees of the State and 
of which the employee is a member. A representative of an employee, other than an attorney, may observe 
but may not actively participate, or advise the State employee during the course of such meeting, 
investigation, negotiation, conference or other proceeding. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to 
permit any person who is not licensed to practice law in Illinois to deliver any legal services or otherwise 
engage in any activities that would constitute the unauthorized practice of law. Any representative of an 
employee who is present with the consent of the employee, shall not, during or after termination of the 
relationship permitted by this Section with the State employee, use or reveal any information obtained 
during the course of the meeting, investigation, negotiation, conference or other proceeding without the 
consent of the complaining party and any State employee who is the subject of the proceeding and pursuant 
to rules and regulations governing confidentiality of such information as promulgated by the appropriate 
State agency. Intentional or reckless disclosure of information in violation of these confidentiality 
requirements shall constitute a Class B misdemeanor. 
        (5) Establish, maintain and carry out a continuing sexual harassment program that shall include the 
following: 
            (a) Develop a written sexual harassment policy that includes at a minimum the following information: 
(i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual harassment under State law; (iii) a 
description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) the agency's internal complaint process including 
penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department and 
the Commission; (vi) directions on how to contact the Department and Commission; and (vii) protection 
against retaliation as provided by Section 6‐101 of this Act. The policy shall be reviewed annually. 
            (b) Post in a prominent and accessible location and distribute in a manner to assure notice to all 
agency employees without exception the agency's sexual harassment policy. Such documents may meet, but 
shall not exceed, the 6th grade literacy level. Distribution shall be effectuated within 90 days of the effective 
date of this amendatory Act of 1992 and shall occur annually thereafter. 
            (c) Provide training on sexual harassment prevention and the agency's sexual harassment policy as a 
component of all ongoing or new employee training programs. 

Page 46 of 58



Page 8 of 8 
 

        (6) Notify the Department 30 days before effecting any layoff. Once notice is given, the following shall 
occur: 
            (a) No layoff may be effective earlier than 10 working days after notice to the Department, unless an 
emergency layoff situation exists. 
            (b) The State executive department, State agency, board, commission, or instrumentality in which the 
layoffs are to occur must notify each employee targeted for layoff, the employee's union representative (if 
applicable), and the State Dislocated Worker Unit at the Department of Commerce and Economic 
Opportunity. 
            (c) The State executive department, State agency, board, commission, or instrumentality in which the 
layoffs are to occur must conform to applicable collective bargaining agreements. 
            (d) The State executive department, State agency, board, commission, or instrumentality in which the 
layoffs are to occur should notify each employee targeted for layoff that transitional assistance may be 
available to him or her under the Economic Dislocation and Worker Adjustment Assistance Act administered 
by the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity. Failure to give such notice shall not invalidate 
the layoff or postpone its effective date. 
     As used in this subsection (B), "disability" shall be defined in rules promulgated under the Illinois 
Administrative Procedure Act.  
    (C) Civil Rights Violations. It is a civil rights violation for any public contractor or eligible bidder to:  
        (1) fail to comply with the public contractor's or eligible bidder's duty to refrain from unlawful 
discrimination and discrimination based on citizenship status in employment under subsection (A)(1) of this 
Section; or 
        (2) fail to comply with the public contractor's or eligible bidder's duties of affirmative action under 
subsection (A) of this Section, provided however, that the Department has notified the public contractor or 
eligible bidder in writing by certified mail that the public contractor or eligible bidder may not be in 
compliance with affirmative action requirements of subsection (A). A minimum of 60 days to comply with the 
requirements shall be afforded to the public contractor or eligible bidder before the Department may issue 
formal notice of non‐compliance. 
    (D) As used in this Section:  
        (1) "American Indian or Alaska Native" means a person having origins in any of the original peoples of 
North and South America, including Central America, and who maintains tribal affiliation or community 
attachment. 
        (2) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, 
or the Indian subcontinent, including, but not limited to, Cambodia, China, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, 
Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, Thailand, and Vietnam. 
        (3) "Black or African American" means a person having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa. 
Terms such as "Haitian" or "Negro" can be used in addition to "Black or African American". 
        (4) "Hispanic or Latino" means a person of Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South or Central American, or 
other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race. 
        (5) "Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander" means a person having origins in any of the original 
peoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands. 
(Source: P.A. 97‐396, eff. 1‐1‐12.)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47 of 58



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 6, 2016 

RE:    Revenue Recovery Agreement  
 
 
Our staff is always looking for opportunities for grand funding and revenue enhancements.  We 
believe an opportunity exists for increasing revenue already due the City with the assistance of 
an Illinois‐based firm, Azavar Audit Solutions.   
 
Azavar audits organizations that remit tax revenue to municipalities with the goal of identifying 
taxes that have been missed, underpaid or incorrectly paid to the municipality.  We are 
particularly interested in the audit of sales tax, electric tax, gas tax, cable franchise fees, and 
telecommunications taxes.  The audit is not directed at the individual tax payers, but rather the 
organizations collecting the taxes.   
 
Azavar works on a contingent fee basis in which the City will incur no fees unless the firm 
recovers revenue on behalf of the City.  In accordance with the attached agreement, Azavar 
would be entitled to 45% of any recovered revenue for a period of 36 months.  Again, the firm 
would only be entitled to a share of revenue recovered for the City.   
 
The attached contract with Azavar has been reviewed and modified by the City Attorney.  I 
recommend authorization to execute the contract.   
 
  

 

 

Page 48 of 58



 
Page 1 of 3

CONTINGENT FEE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between Azavar Audit Solutions, Incorporated, an Illinois corporation 

having its principal place of business at 55 East Jackson Boulevard, Suite 2100, Chicago, Illinois 60604 (“Azavar”), and the City of Galena, an Illinois municipal 

corporation having its principal place of business at 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036 (“Customer”). 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

1.1 Subject to the following terms and conditions, Azavar shall provide professional computer, data audit, compliance management, and management 
consulting services (“Services”) in accordance with the below statement of work.  Azavar will render the services provided under this Agreement 
in a workmanlike manner in accordance with industry standards.  The services and work provided shall be provided in substantial accordance with 
the below statements: 

 
(a) Azavar shall undertake a Municipal Audit Program on behalf of the Customer.  As part of the Municipal Audit Program Azavar shall, 

on behalf of the Customer, separately review and audit each fee, ordinance, contract, franchise agreement, utility tax, locally imposed 
occupation tax, excise tax, taxpayer, franchise fee, utility service fee, intergovernmental or other remittances to the Customer, and 
expense imposed by or upon the Customer within the Customer’s corporate boundaries (“Audits”) including, but not limited to local 
businesses, electric, gas, cable, telecommunications, refuse, and water providers (“Providers”) on behalf of the Customer.  Azavar shall 
audit or review during the course of its work for the Customer, Customer ordinances, contracts,  receipts, addresses and databases 
including the aforementioned relating to state and local sales/use/occupation taxes, including amusement taxes, and business 
license/registration revenue.  Azavar shall also review and audit water service (including expense and taxes), food, beverage, and/or 
liquor taxes, and hotel/motel occupancy taxes where applicable to the Customer.  Azavar shall review and consult Customer on areas 
to maximize Customer revenues including, but not limited to, previous, existing, or new ordinances, agreements, or third-party 
contracts. 

(b) The purpose of each audit is to determine past, present, and future taxes, franchise fees, service fees, or any other refunds, monies or 
revenue owed to the Customer that were not properly attributed to the Customer or were not properly paid or collected and to determine 
future taxes, franchise fees, and other monies owed to the Customer not previously counted so that Customer can collect these past, 
present, and future monies.  Federal and Illinois state law, the Customer’s own local ordinances and databases, and the franchise 
agreements, contracts or bills between Customer and Providers are used by Azavar to conduct the Audits and Azavar will present to 
Customer in writing during the course of the Audits findings of monies due or potentially due to the Customer for review by the 
Customer (“Findings”).  Azavar shall review Customer ordinances and shall present Findings to maximize Customer revenues as part 
of the Audits.  Customer agrees to review any Findings within thirty (30) days. 

(c) Customer hereby represents that it is not engaged in any Audits as contemplated under this Agreement and shall therefore pay Azavar 
the fees set forth in this Agreement for any Findings made by Azavar.  Customer agrees that it shall not initiate or engage in any Audits 
contemplated under this Agreement without Azavar’s written consent. 

(d) In order to perform the Audits, Azavar will require full access to Customer records and Provider records.  Customer will use its authority 
as necessary to assist in acquiring information and procure data from Providers; Customer agrees to cooperate with Azavar, provide 
any necessary documentation, and will engage in necessary meetings with Providers; 

(e) During the course of each audit, Azavar may find that rather than being owed past due funds, the Customer owes funds erroneously 
paid to the Customer.  In this case, Azavar will immediately terminate its participation for that specific Provider audit at no cost to the 
Customer and will document the error and provide the Customer with information necessary to correct the error.  Azavar shall have no 
liability to Customer for these errors or actions arising from Azavar’s or Customer’s knowledge thereof.   

(f) Customer acknowledges that each Provider is a separate entity that is not controlled by Azavar and therefore Azavar cannot predict all 
the steps or actions that a Provider will take to limit its responsibility or liability during the audit.  Should Customer negotiate, abate, 
cancel, amend, delay, or waive by any means all or a portion of funds identified as payable to Customer during an audit, Customer 
shall pay all Azavar expenses and fees on a time and materials basis for that audit in addition to any applicable contingency fees for 
any Findings that were identified by Azavar or by its Audits; 

(g) The first audit start date is expected to be within no later than thirty (30) days from the date of this Agreement unless changed and 
approved by the Customer’s Audit Primary Contact and Liaison; 

(h) Each audit is expected to last at least six (6) months.  Each subsequent audit will begin after payment terms and obligations have been 
satisfactorily met from previously completed Audits however overlapping audit work may take place at the discretion of Azavar.  Audit 
timelines are set at the discretion of Azavar; 

(i) Audit status meetings will be held regularly via phone, email, or in person throughout the course of the Audits between Azavar and the 
Customer’s Primary Contact and Liaison and will occur approximately every quarter; 

(j) Jason Perry, Municipal Audit Program Manager, and Azavar specialists will be auditors under this agreement.  All Azavar staff or 
subcontractors shall be supervised by the Azavar Program Manager.   

 
1.2 Customer agrees to provide reasonable facilities, space, desks, chairs, telephone and reasonably necessary office supplies for Consultants working 

on Customer’s premises as may be reasonably required for the performance of the Services set forth in this Agreement and in any Exhibit hereto.   
Customer will assign and designate an employee to be the Audit Primary Contact and Liaison.  The Customer’s Audit Primary Contact and Liaison 
will be the final decision maker for the Customer as it relates to this audit and will meet with Azavar staff on a regular basis as necessary.  Lack 
of participation of Customer staff, especially at critical milestones during an audit, will adversely affect the audit timeline and successful recovery 
of funds.  Customer’s staff shall be available for meetings and participation with Providers to properly verify records and recover funds.   

 

Page 49 of 58



 
Page 2 of 3

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  Azavar acknowledges and agrees that the relationship of the parties hereunder shall be that of independent 
contractor and that neither Azavar nor its employees shall be deemed to be an employee of Customer for any reason whatsoever.  Neither Azavar nor 
Azavar’s employees shall be entitled to any Customer employment rights or benefits whatsoever.   
 

3. PAYMENT TERMS.  
 

3.1 Customer shall compensate Azavar the fees set forth in this agreement on a contingency basis.  If applicable, Azavar shall submit an invoice to 
Customer on a monthly basis detailing the amounts charged to Customer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  Any invoice not disputed in 
writing by Customer within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such invoice shall be considered approved by the Customer.  Customer shall remit 
payment to Azavar in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.  If Customer defaults on payment of any invoice that is not 
disputed in writing by Customer within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such invoice Azavar, at its discretion, may accelerate all payments due 
under this Agreement and seek recovery of all estimated fees due to Azavar based on Findings.  Azavar shall be entitled to recover all costs of 
collection including, but not limited to, finance charges, interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month, reasonable attorney’s fees, court costs, 
and collection service fees and costs for any efforts to collect fees from the customer.  Contingency payment terms are outlined below.  If Customer 
negotiates, abates, cancels, amends, delays, or waives, without Azavar’s written consent, any tax determination or Findings that were identified 
by Azavar or by its Audits where such Findings were allowed under the law at the time the tax determination or Findings were made, Customer 
shall pay to Azavar applicable contingency fees for the total said tax determination or Findings at the rates set forth below and for the following 
thirty-six (36) months.  If Customer later implements during the subsequent thirty-six (36) months any Findings Customer initially declined based 
on Azavar programs or recommendations, Azavar shall be paid by Customer its portion of the savings and/or recoveries over the following thirty-
six (36) months at the contingency fee rates set forth below. 

 
3.2 Customer shall pay Azavar an amount equal to forty-five (45) percent of any new revenues or prospective funds recovered per account or per 

Provider for thirty-six (36) months following when funds begin to be properly remitted to the Customer.  In the event Azavar is able to recover 
any retroactive funds, any additional savings or revenue increases for any time period, or any credits at any time, Customer will pay Azavar an 
amount equal to forty-five (45) percent of any retroactive funds, savings, and fair market value for any other special consideration or compensation 
recovered for or received by the Customer from any Provider.  All contingency fees paid to Azavar are based on determinations of recovery by 
Azavar including Provider data and regulatory filings.  All revenue after the subsequent thirty-six (36) month period for each account individually 
will accrue to the sole benefit of the Customer. 

 
3.3 As it pertains to Customer expenses, utility service bill and cost Audits, Customer shall pay Azavar an amount equal to forty-five (45) percent of 

prospective savings approved by Customer for thirty-six (36) months following the date savings per Provider is implemented by Azavar or 
Customer.  In the event Azavar is able to recover any refunds or any credits at any time, Customer will pay Azavar an amount equal to forty-five 
(45) percent of said refunds or credits recovered for or received by Customer from any Provider.  All contingency fees paid to Azavar are based 
on determinations of savings by Azavar including Provider data and regulatory filings.  All savings after the subsequent thirty-six (36) month 
period for each service provider individually will accrue to the sole benefit of the Customer. 

 
4. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 

4.1 Each party acknowledges that in the performance of its obligations hereunder, either party may have access to information belonging to the other 
which is proprietary, private and highly confidential (“Confidential Information”).  Each party, on behalf of itself and its employees, agrees not to 
disclose to any third party any Confidential Information to which it may have access while performing its obligations hereunder without the written 
consent of the disclosing party which shall be executed by an officer of such disclosing party.  Confidential Information does not include:  
(i) written information legally acquired by either party prior to the negotiation of this Agreement, (ii) information which is or becomes a matter of 
public knowledge, (iii) information which is or becomes available to the recipient party from third parties where such third parties have no 
confidentiality obligations to the disclosing party; and (iv) information subject to disclosure under Illinois’ Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 
140/1 et seq.). 

 
4.2 Azavar agrees that any work product or any other data or information that is provided by Customer in connection with the Services shall remain 

the property of Customer, and shall be returned promptly upon demand by Customer, or if not earlier demanded, upon expiration of the Services 
provided under the Statement of Work hereto. 

 
5. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
 

5.1 No work performed by Azavar or any Consultant with respect to the Services or any supporting or related documentation therefor shall be 
considered to be a Work Made for Hire (as defined under U.S. copyright law) and, as such, shall be owned by and for the benefit of Azavar.  In 
the event that it should be determined that any of such Services or supporting documentation qualifies as a "Work Made for Hire" under U.S. 
copyright law, then Customer will and hereby does assign to Azavar, for no additional consideration, all right, title, and interest that it may possess 
in such Services and related documentation including, but not limited to, all copyright and proprietary rights relating thereto.  Upon request, 
Customer will take such steps as are reasonably necessary to enable Azavar to record such assignment.  Customer will sign, upon request, any 
documents needed to confirm that the Services or any portion thereof is not a Work Made for Hire and/or to effectuate the assignment of its rights 
to Azavar. 

 
5.2 Under no circumstance shall Customer have the right to distribute any software containing, or based upon, Confidential Information of Azavar to 

any third party without the prior written consent of Azavar which must be executed by a senior officer of Azavar. 
 
5.3 Customer agrees to participate in pilot testing and use of Azavar software related to expense management, tax location management, sales, use, 

and occupation taxes and hotel/motel taxes. Customer agrees to provide Azavar feedback in writing regarding the features and function of Azavar 
software including the usefulness of said software to Customer and the value of any savings Customer may derive from the use of said software. 

 
 

Page 50 of 58



 
Page 3 of 3

 
6. DISCLAIMER 
 

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, AZAVAR DOES NOT MAKE ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES RENDERED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RESULTS OBTAINED FROM 
AZAVAR’S WORK, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT SHALL AZAVAR BE LIABLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, 
OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, OR FOR ACTS OF NEGLIGENCE THAT ARE NOT INTENTIONAL OR RECKLESS IN NATURE, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER IT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  CUSTOMER AGREES THAT 
AZAVAR’S LIABILITY HEREUNDER FOR DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE 
TOTAL AMOUNT PAID FOR THE SERVICES GIVING RISE TO THE DAMAGES UNDER THE APPLICABLE ESTIMATE OR IN 
THE AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PARTICULAR SERVICE IF NO ESTIMATE IS PROVIDED. 

 
7. TERMINATION 
 

7.1 Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 7.2 below, this Agreement shall be effective from the date first written above and shall 
continue thereafter until terminated upon 90 days written notice by Customer or Azavar.  

 
7.2 Termination for any cause or under any provision of this Agreement shall not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which shall have 

accrued or shall thereafter accrue to either party. 
 
7.3 The provisions set forth above in Section 3 (Payment Terms), Section 4 (Confidential Information), and Section 5 (Intellectual Property) and 

below in Section 9 (Assignment), and Section 10 (Use of Customer Name) shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 
8. NOTICES.  Any notice made in accordance with this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail or by overnight express mail: 
 

If to Azavar If to Customer 

General Counsel 
Azavar Audit Solutions, Inc. 

55 East Jackson Boulevard, Suite 2100 
Chicago, Illinois  60604 

City Attorney 
City of Galena 

101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036  

 
9. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement or any of its rights hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party hereto, 

except Azavar shall be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement in connection with a sale of all or substantially all of Azavar’s 
assets. 

 
10. USE OF CUSTOMER NAME.  Customer hereby consents to Azavar’s use of Customer’s name in Azavar’s marketing materials; provided, however, 

that Customer’s name shall not be so used in such a fashion that could reasonably be deemed to be an endorsement by Customer of Azavar unless such 
an endorsement is provided by customer. 

 
11. COMPLETE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement, along with each Statement of Work attached hereto from time to time, contains the entire Agreement 

between the parties hereto with respect to the matters specified herein.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not 
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.  This Agreement shall not be amended except by a written amendment executed by 
the parties hereto.  No delay, neglect or forbearance on the part of either party in enforcing against the other any term or condition of this Agreement 
shall either be, or be deemed to be, a waiver or in any way prejudice any right of that party under this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois and the parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Illinois. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate originals by their duly authorized representatives as of the date 
set forth below. 
 

AZAVAR AUDIT SOLUTIONS, INC.  CUSTOMER  

By   By  

Title   Title  

Date   Date  
 
 
 

Page 51 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

5 ALARM FIRE & SAFETY EQU (173)
156237-1 1 Invoice HYDRO-TEST AIR BOTTL 03/29/2016 670.00 22.22.655.00

Total 5 ALARM FIRE & SAFETY EQU (173): 670.00

ARTISAN CONTRACTORS, INC. (119577)
022416 1 Invoice SIDE ROOF 02/24/2016 2,620.00 58.54.820.00

Total ARTISAN CONTRACTORS, INC. (119577): 2,620.00

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
040116 1 Invoice PHONE 04/01/2016 392.24 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 392.24

BATTERY UNIVERSE (120233)
18786 1 Invoice BATTERIES FOR THERM 03/18/2016 105.90 01.21.652.03

Total BATTERY UNIVERSE (120233): 105.90

BINGHAM, PENNY (939)
032816 1 Invoice PORTABLE RADIO/PA FO 03/28/2016 106.87 59.55.929.00

Total BINGHAM, PENNY (939): 106.87

CARLISLE RYAN DIGITAL PRINT & SERVICES (120070)
25360 1 Invoice PSN BUSINESS CARDS 03/04/2016 27.12 52.43.553.00
25702 1 Invoice WEDDING SHOW BROCH 03/30/2016 211.74 58.54.553.00

Total CARLISLE RYAN DIGITAL PRINT & SERVICES (120070): 238.86

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
184222 1 Invoice GARAGE DOOR MAINTE 03/17/2016 13.30 01.21.511.00

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 13.30

DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867)
890726 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNS 03/30/2016 50.17 01.41.652.04

Total DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867): 50.17

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
968970 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 04/05/2016 255.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 255.00

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)
2910 1 Invoice POOL REPAIRS 03/22/2016 52.59 59.55.529.00
2942 1 Invoice HAND DRYER REPLACE 03/31/2016 664.00 01.13.511.06

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 716.59

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
6605 1 Invoice MISC. ELECTRIC 04/06/2016 250.00 15.41.514.06

Page 52 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

6605 2 Invoice MISC. ELECTRIC 04/06/2016 250.00 01.41.514.11

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 500.00

GALENA ARC (850)
032016 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  03/31/2006 100.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 100.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00048141 1 Invoice AD 03/18/2016 41.80 01.13.511.06
00048164 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 03/18/2016 49.40 01.16.553.00
00048192 1 Invoice BID NOTICE 03/23/2016 52.25 01.45.532.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 143.45

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
040116 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 04/01/2016 8.00 01.13.654.00
040116 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 04/01/2016 25.00 22.22.538.01
040116 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 04/01/2016 30.00 01.21.651.00
040116 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 04/01/2016 27.00 58.54.654.01

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 90.00

GALENA LUMBER CO. (85)
033116 1 Invoice SOFFIT FOR SHED 03/31/2016 271.12 22.22.840.05
040116 1 Invoice REBUILD BLEACHERS 04/01/2016 213.44 17.52.820.06

Total GALENA LUMBER CO. (85): 484.56

GALL'S, INC. (712)
005080556 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/TIM 03/18/2016 67.09 01.21.471.15
005136929 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/CHUCK 03/29/2016 21.47 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 88.56

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
040116 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 7.98 01.41.511.00
040116 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 23.89 01.41.514.06
040116 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 22.39 01.41.613.03
040116 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 33.31 01.41.652.00
040116 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 33.80 01.41.653.00
040116 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 118.60 15.41.514.06
040116 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 17.18 17.52.652.00
040116 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 50.62 22.22.611.00
040116 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 25.47 22.22.613.00
040116 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 9.48 58.54.511.00
040116 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 44.98 58.54.553.00
040116 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 04/01/2016 32.36 59.55.511.02

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 420.06

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI006583 1 Invoice STERLING DUMP 03/31/2016 1,754.35 01.41.613.05

Page 53 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 1,754.35

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
040116 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 04/01/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
040116 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  04/01/2016 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

IFIBER (119998)
1602096 1 Invoice IFIBER CONNECTION 04/01/2016 300.00 22.22.652.00

Total IFIBER (119998): 300.00

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1629542 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 03/14/2016 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

IL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECT. AGEN (119138)
031516 1 Invoice EPA LOAN PAYMENT - W 03/15/2016 62,437.89 51.42.716.00
031516 2 Invoice EPA LOAN PAYMENT - W 03/15/2016 18,610.40 51.42.720.01

Total IL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECT. AGEN (119138): 81,048.29

ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034)
36609 1 Invoice NEW LIGHTS FOR GEAR 03/15/2016 593.99 22.22.840.00

Total ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034): 593.99

INTL INST OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS (114)
032216 1 Invoice DUES 03/22/2016 180.00 01.14.561.00

Total INTL INST OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS (114): 180.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
8603386 1 Invoice STORM SEWER REPLAC 04/04/2016 2,445.00 01.41.614.05

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 2,445.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
040116 1 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 387.24 01.13.571.01
040116 2 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 489.03 01.21.571.01
040116 3 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 129.12 12.10.571.01
040116 4 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 45.84 17.52.571.01
040116 5 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 413.89 20.25.576.01
040116 6 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 395.93 22.22.576.01
040116 7 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 04/01/2016 608.06 58.54.571.01
040116 8 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 04/01/2016 37.27 01.41.571.01
040116 9 Invoice LIFT STATION 04/01/2016 114.37 52.43.850.09
041116 1 Invoice ELECTRIC (STREET LIGH 04/11/2016 5,109.87 15.41.572.00

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 7,730.62

Page 54 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
032816 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE/SPO'S 03/28/2016 18.75 01.16.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 18.75

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
040116 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 04/01/2016 200.12 01.21.538.00
040116 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 04/01/2016 100.00 22.22.538.00
16-123 1 Invoice NEW ID CARDS 03/30/2016 5.00 01.21.549.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 305.12

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9303989261 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 03/29/2016 283.38 20.25.652.02

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 283.38

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 03/31/2016 32.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 32.00

MILLER, JONATHAN (120143)
040716 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 04/07/2016 97.93 01.45.562.00

Total MILLER, JONATHAN (120143): 97.93

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
040116 1 Invoice VEHICLE 04/01/2016 129.96 20.25.513.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 129.96

NICOR (151)
040116 1 Invoice POOL-GAS 04/01/2016 265.33 59.55.571.02
040116 2 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 04/01/2016 90.96 01.13.511.06

Total NICOR (151): 356.29

NICOR (F) (118924)
040116 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 04/01/2016 158.48 01.13.571.05
040116 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 04/01/2016 235.61 01.21.571.05
040116 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 04/01/2016 479.56 01.41.571.05
040116 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 04/01/2016 388.52 22.22.571.05
040116 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 04/01/2016 709.75 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 1,971.92

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
040116 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 04/01/2016 85.64 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 85.64

PAYMENT SERVICE NETWORK, INC. (120223)
2016032422 1 Invoice PSN CREDIT CARD MAC 03/24/2016 219.00 52.43.553.00

Page 55 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total PAYMENT SERVICE NETWORK, INC. (120223): 219.00

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
040516 1 Invoice POSTAGE 04/05/2016 18.58 01.21.551.00
040516 2 Invoice MEAL/TRAINING 04/05/2016 9.83 01.21.562.00
040516 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 04/05/2016 4.95 01.21.651.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 33.36

PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208)
040116 1 Invoice DENTAL INSURANCE 04/01/2016 1,637.35 01.13.451.01

Total PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208): 1,637.35

POCKET PRESS, INC. (120234)
83775 1 Invoice POCKET GUIDES 04/04/2016 78.42 01.21.549.00

Total POCKET PRESS, INC. (120234): 78.42

R & D COMPUTER SYSTEMS, LLC (120232)
1922 1 Invoice LASERFICHE SUPPORT 02/29/2016 784.00 01.13.512.04

Total R & D COMPUTER SYSTEMS, LLC (120232): 784.00

RYAN, ANGELA (119753)
032816 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 03/28/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total RYAN, ANGELA (119753): 200.00

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0445060 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 03/29/2016 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659)
0247335 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION MATERI 03/22/2016 303.41 01.21.652.03

Total SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659): 303.41

STEEL MART (567)
362490 1 Invoice PANELS FOR HAND DRY 04/05/2016 25.00 01.13.511.06

Total STEEL MART (567): 25.00

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
104963 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 04/01/2016 46.07 01.13.511.08

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 46.07

UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474)
44825 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/BILL 03/31/2016 177.84 01.21.471.15

Page 56 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474): 177.84

US CELLULAR (92)
040116 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 04/01/2016 35.42 01.41.552.00
040116 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 04/01/2016 33.22 01.11.552.00
040116 3 Invoice FIRE DEPT./CELL PHONE 04/01/2016 24.23 22.22.552.00
040116 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 04/01/2016 16.79 01.21.552.01
040116 5 Invoice LORI/CELLPHONE 04/01/2016 20.00 01.261.0
040116 6 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 04/01/2016 50.15 01.21.552.01
040116 7 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 04/01/2016 52.99 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 232.80

VAN METER INC. (141)
S9098355.00 1 Invoice IMPROVEMENTS 03/18/2016 856.00 17.52.820.06
S9098355.00 1 Invoice MISC. 03/28/2016 18.52 17.52.652.00

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 874.52

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
040116 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 04/01/2016 50.04 01.21.537.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 50.04

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D001325 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER 03/23/2016 63.75 01.13.511.06
D001843 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 03/25/2016 217.86 01.13.511.06
D001956 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 03/25/2016 170.47 01.21.654.00
D002047 1 Invoice PAPER 03/31/2016 352.00 01.13.651.02

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 804.08

WEX BANK (119104)
040116 1 Invoice ADMIN/GAS 04/01/2016 28.79 01.11.562.00
040116 2 Invoice FIRE-GAS 04/01/2016 232.78 22.22.655.00
040116 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 04/01/2016 765.65 01.41.655.00
040116 4 Invoice POLICE-GAS 04/01/2016 927.31 01.21.655.00
040116 5 Invoice PARKS-GAS 04/01/2016 205.23 17.52.655.03

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,159.76

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
040116 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 04/01/2016 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13510 1 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 04/05/2016 112.50 01.13.512.04
13510 2 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 04/05/2016 187.50 01.21.512.00

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 300.00

Page 57 of 58



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 3/29/2016 - 4/30/2016 Apr 07, 2016  11:58AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Grand Totals: 113,089.05

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 2887368
Vendor number hash - split: 4085132
Total number of invoices: 65
Total number of transactions: 109

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 113,089.05 113,089.05

Grand Totals: 113,089.05 113,089.05

Page 58 of 58


	00.00 Agenda 04.11.16
	01.0130 Liquor License Renewals 2016
	Memo to Council for Renewals 2016
	Liquor Licenses 2016

	02.0131 Elks New Manager Application
	03.0132 Happy Joes New Manager Application
	04.0133 Minutes cc032816
	04.0134 Minutes sc040416
	05.0134 Tour License Renewals 2016
	07.0137 Grant Park Masterplan
	08.0138 City Hall and Parks Janitorial Contract
	09.0139 Turner Hall Janitorial Contract 2016
	10.0140 Public Works Janitorial Contract
	11.0141 Market House Janitorial
	041116c
	Market House Contract 2016

	12.0142 Revenue Recovery Agreement
	041116b
	Azavar Audit_Agreement Galena_Illinois_2016

	13.0143 Warrants 04.11.16



